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Completed in 1892, St. Joseph Retreat (sece name in stone, Fhotn
No, 1) is a four-level (with basement) structure, roughly 100 x 43
feet in size., The foundation (basement level) is of natural sandstone
blocks, 16-18 inches thick. They carry the next two levels - of red
brick, The top story is a fine mansard, roofed with decorative metal
shingles, Gone today (it is not known when) are the pyramidal towers
over the esst and south entrances, the profusion of bulbous brick
chimneys, and the Victorian porch on the east,

The north section was added in 1905, It is unusual in that its
second and third story windows on the west are generazlly Gothic in style
4 while their counterparts on the east have an Eastern, almost Islamic
. appearance, Feature of both east and west gable is a pair of oval
windows =ik that intersect at right angles to create 2 cross. The
overlapping section of these windows cpens.

SIS VTR

Ceilings originelly 16 feet in height, have now been lowered
throughout the building for heating and ccoling purposes, All stzirways
have the original carved wood banisters., Carved wooden door frames
ornament the basement rooms where the Sisters once lived, Wainccoting
is found throughout the building,

St. Joseph Retreat looks today much as it did when built, with the
1 changes noted above, Though obviously neglected and scmewhat dilapid=ated
4 in appearance, it remains essentially sound, structurally. The Sisters,
3 with local preservationists, hope that it can te preserved, perhaps even
rectored, no that it may once 2pgain, in some capscity, contributed to
k the enrichment of life in Oklahoma 2s it did fcr more than three
3 quarters of a century.
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*in 1975

If a good social history of Oklahoma is ever written,
the Benedictines, both men and women, will command an
important chapter. They pioneered Indian Territory,
pushed back frontier ignorance with superb education,
and brought a cense of decency and justice that helped
tame those turbulent times.

So wrote Editor Frosty Troy of The Oklahoms Observer in 1976
during the Nation's Bicentennial. Few Oklahomans would disagree.
Male Benedictines pioneered Catholic mission work smong the Indi:sns
in 1876, They established Sacred Heart, a school that grew eventually
into present St. Gregory's College in Shawnee, placed in the Natisnal
Registex*The Benedictine Sisters - three of them - arrived in Guthrie,
0., T, in 1889, just five months after Oklahoma Territory was opened to
settlement., St. Mary's school was opened immediately. By 1892 the ' *
entire order - another 23 sisters - had arrived (from Creston, Iow:)
and St. Joseph Reatreat had been constructed. Tt is this tall, gabled,
red brick structure, with a section added onto ‘he ncrth in 1905,
for which National Register is also sought with this nomination,

St. Joseph's fcademy opened in 1897, a boarding school for
girls with classes for both the elementary grades and high school,
It was the only such Catholic school in the new Oklahoma Territory.
(Sacred Heart was in Indian Territory.) The campus occupied only a
corner of the 308-acre farm operated by the Sisters. There were
orchards, and a herd of pure-bred Holstein cattle, The Sisters
produced all their own poultry and beef, milk and butter,
vegetables and fruit,

As the needs of the students grew, the school grew to meet them,
In 1917 a regular four-year college curriculum was begun, The neme
became Oklahoma Catholic College for Women, affilisted with Catholic
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Classes were taught fer women of all ages =nd grsdes far 27
years, Then in 1949 the name was changed once again - to Beredictine
Heights College., New housing facilities were added, And that fall
the school became co-educational, Men however, were dzy students
only, Within five years the once wholly female’ school had its




. L]

Form No. 10-300a \ / N\ /
{Hev 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR r

OR NPS:
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE B

RECEIVE
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM '

DATE ENTERED

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 1

first male president. He began a move to update and expand the

facility - a move that led, ironically, to the transfer of the school
from Guthrie to bigger, more affluent Tulsa, The actual transfer

came in 1965, The Sisters sold the property to the City of Guthrie

for $150,000. The Motherhouse moved to Tulsa and a three-quarter-century
era on the frontier had ended.

In Guthrie the Sisters had watched a towr of tents and crude
shacks grow into » brick-paved Victorian showplace., They had watched
the birthing of Oklahoma as the Constitutional Convention met » few
blocks nway to plan the fusing of the twin territories into the 46th
state. They had seen the capital slip away frcm Guthrie to Oklshoma
City, the development and changes brought by Werld War I and World
War II,

Through it all, however, the convent rem-~ined essentially =
teaching mission, From 1892 to 1962 the Sisters staffed St, Joseph'ts ' *
in Guthrie, from 1894 to 1924 the Langston Parish School. Over the
years they opened and/or operated a score and more parish schools
over the state. In 1979 St, Joseph Convent will begin a year-long
| celebration of its Centennial. Although they ctarted in Iowa and
J now live in Tulsa, the Sisters will focus their attention on Guthrie,
their home for most of that time. The Centennial will extend into
1980 to coincide with the world-wide celebraticn that year of 1500 vears
of Benedictinism,

| .

Since the late 1960s St, Joseph's facilities have accommndated
a federally funded Job Corps program. And this makes St. Joseph
Retreat, the oldest significant Catholic structure remaining in
Oklahoma, a part of what is believed to be the nation's only city-owmed
Job Corps Center,
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